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	GoNZ
	Government of New Zealand

	GoS
	Government of Samoa

	HRPP
	Human Rights Protection Party 
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1.
INTRODUCTION
1.1
Purpose of the handbook
This Induction Handbook has been prepared by the Public Sector Improvement Facility (PSIF), Facility Management Unit (FMU) for three key reasons:

i. to guide PSIF Project Coordinators on how to assist PSIF advisers to settle into their placements; 
ii. to provide PSIF advisers with contextual information relevant to their placement; and 
iii. to assist international PSIF advisers by providing a brief overview and further sources for information, on living and working in Samoa

1.2
Accessing the handbook

A hardcopy of the Induction Handbook will be given to the Project Coordinator by the FMU as soon as the Facility Steering Committee (FSC) has approved the PSIF Project.  This will enable the Project Coordinator to prepare for the arrival of the adviser in the Ministry/Agency.  
The Induction Handbook can be downloaded from the PSIF website: www.samoapsif.gov.ws
If the Project Coordinator has access to the internet s/he should send an electronic copy of the Induction Handbook to the adviser prior to his/her arrival in the Ministry/Agency. 
If the Project Coordinator does not have internet access then they can inform the adviser of the www.samoapsif.gov.ws website and where to find the Induction Handbook.  
As a last resort option, a hardcopy of the Induction Handbook can be copied by the Project Coordinator and given to the adviser on her/his arrival. 

1.3
Using the handbook
The Induction Handbook will be used by the Project Coordinator:

i. to prepare for the arrival of the adviser in to Samoa (if the adviser is an international adviser);
ii. to prepare a package of information to orient the adviser to the Government of Samoa (GoS) and the relevant Ministry/Agency they are attached to; and
iii. to prepare for the introduction of the adviser to counterparts and key personnel both in and outside of the Ministry/Agency. 

The Handbook will be used by the Adviser for guidance:

i. to the PSIF and the role of the FMU;
ii. to the ministry or agency and other relevant key contacts;
iii. to appropriate behaviour when working and living in Samoa; and
iv. to sources of information that will assist with life in Samoa.
1.4
Use of the handbook by managing contractors 

The Handbook refers to a single adviser. In some instances there may be a team of advisers working for a managing contractor. In this circumstance the Project Coordinator will be responsible for inducting the representative of the managing contractor (e.g. team leader) and, working with the representative of the managing contractor, the induction of other team members. 
The Project Coordinator and each individual adviser will sign off the Project Coordinators check list for international advisers (see Section 4). 

1.5
Up-dating the handbook 
The FMU Finance and Administration Officer will keep the Handbook up to date. S/he will advise Project Coordinators each time the Induction Handbook is up-dated. Each new version will be numbered (version x) and dated. 
The Handbook will be available on the FMU website: 
www.samoapsif.gov.ws
The contact person in the PSIF for queries about the Handbook is:
Andrew Taylor 

Finance and Administration Officer
Facility Management Unit 
Ministry of Prime Minister and Cabinet

Phone: 63222 or 25013 ext 753
Email Address:  andrew.taylor@samoapsif.gov.ws
2.
THE PUBLIC SECTOR IMPROVEMENT FACILITY 

2.1
Why is the PSIF relevant to advisers?

It is important that advisers contracted under PSIF funded projects understand the broader context of their work and how it relates, via public sector improvement, to the achievement of the Strategy for the Development of Samoa 2008—2012 Ensuring Sustainable Economic and Social Progress (SDS).

The framework for economic and social development in Samoa is set by the SDS. Under the SDS, measures are being taken to address the weakness in governance. Goal 6: Improved Governance of the SDS includes the Public Administration Sector Plan for Samoa 2007—2011 (PASP)
. The PASP sets out a public sector reform program that is being implemented with financial and technical assistance from the Public Sector Improvement Facility (PSIF). 
Samoa’s governance environment has improved considerably between 1996—2006 as measured by World Bank governance indicators. However, the category of ‘Government Effectiveness’ (quality of public service provision and bureaucracy, competence of civil servants, independence of the civil service from politics, credibility of commitment to policies) scores relatively poorly in terms of improvement. 
The PSIF Strategic Framework, was developed before the PASP became available but has since been aligned with the PASP and the principles of aid effectiveness (see section 2.2). The PASP applies to all agencies in terms of public sector management and therefore to sector plans and individual Ministry plans (see Figure 2.1 on next page).  
Projects funded under the PSIF should have capacity building as their highest priority and not be seeking to request capital resources that should be covered by Ministry/Agency recurrent budgets. 
The PSIF is managed by the GoS and is within the Ministry of Prime Minister and Cabinet (MPMC). For each project funded under the PSIF there is a Project Agreement between the Facility Management Unit (FMU) and the recipient Ministry/Agency. 

The PSIF takes account of other donor funded initiatives to ensure that it adds value but does not replace the core elements of such projects. 
Figure 2.1
Public Service Commission: Performance Management System
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2.2
Principles underlying PSIF processes

In some countries donor funded facilities to improve public sector governance are being managed by contractors. In such situations, it is the Managing Contractor that supports the development of projects and engages and manages the technical advisers required on projects. 
However in the case of Samoa, the PSIF is being managed by the FMU that is embedded within and part of the Samoan public sector. The procurement and financial systems used by the FMU are those of the Government of Samoa. A parallel system has not been created for the purposes of the PSIF. 

This change of approach that embeds the PSIF in the Government of Samoa’s systems is one reflection of the commitment by the Tripartite Partners (Governments of Samoa, New Zealand and Australia)
 to the principles of aid effectiveness, as expressed in the Paris Declaration of Aid Effectiveness (March 2005):

· Strengthening partner countries’ national development strategies and associated operational frameworks.

· Increasing alignment of aid with partner countries’ priorities, systems and procedures and helping to strengthen their capacities.

· Enhancing donors’ and partner countries’ respective accountability to their citizens and parliaments for their development policies, strategies and performance. 

· Eliminating duplication of efforts and rationalising donor activities to make them as cost-effective as possible.

· Reforming and simplifying donor policies and procedures to encourage collaborative behaviour and progressive alignment with partner countries’ priorities, systems and procedures.

· Defining measures and standards of performance and accountability of partner country systems in public financial management, procurement, fiduciary safeguards and environmental assessments, in line with broadly accepted good practices and their quick and widespread application. 

 The Accra Agenda for Action (Sept 2008) sought to accelerate and deepen implementation of the Paris Declaration on Aid Effectiveness by addressing the three challenges of:
Country ownership, whereby developing country governments will take strong leadership on their own development policies and be supported by donors increasing the predictability of aid and making greater use of existing government systems to deliver aid.

Building more effective and inclusive partnerships, whereby all development actors will work in more inclusive partnerships to ensure that development efforts have a greater impact on reducing poverty.

Achieving development results and openly accounting for them, whereby actions translate into positive impacts on people’s lives and government are accountable to their respective parliaments and governing bodies for these outcomes.

2.2.1

Tripartite Partners’ Aid Objectives 

To align themselves with the Paris and Accra statements the Tripartite Partnership is guided by the following principles:

· Donor harmonisation being Samoan driven, led and owned

· Mutual accountability
· Work within Samoa’s national development frameworks, finance and management systems

· Provide development assistance in ways that build sustainable national capacity through the public sector and improved services
· Utilise existing analytical work to the maximum extent possible and strengthen GoS capacity to undertake this work

· Work together to address weaknesses in institutional capacity. 

2.3
Background to the PSIF 
The Governments of Australia and New Zealand had previously supported a number of public sector reform and institutional strengthening projects in Samoa and in the early 2000s were looking for ways to improve harmonisation of their development assistance programs for greater effectiveness.
A 2003 review of the AusAID funded Institutional Strengthening Projects (ISPs) found that these projects ‘provided a solid foundation on which to build continuing improvements in pubic sector efficiency and effectiveness’, however, there was a need to ‘develop support, at a stage removed from the ISPs, for effective public sector reform and capacity building’.
  Put another way, support for public sector reform should increasingly be provided through mechanisms managed and delivered by the GoS rather than through high intensity individual Ministry/Agency institutional strengthening. The GoS agreed to the establishment of a mechanism to provide this support. 
The Governments of Samoa, New Zealand and Australia
 agreed to the design of a facility that would build the capacity of the public service to implement its national development priorities and that would be consistent with the structures and processes of the GoS, thus promoting ownership and sustainability. 

A Facility Design Document (FDD) was prepared in October 2004. In 2005, recognising the Ministry of Prime Minister and Cabinet’s central agency responsibility for coordinating government policy, the FMU was established in the MPMC.  
Operational support to the PSIF/FMU was provided through a Contracted Support Team funded by AusAID. The Support Team was responsible for working with the FMU to build capacity of personnel and operating systems. This included providing support through the FMU to Ministries/Agencies seeking funding from, or being funded by, the PSIF. The support continued until May 2009. 
2.4
The PSIF
2.4.1

Goal and Purpose of PSIF

The goal of the PSIF is to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of Samoa’s Public Service to support Samoa’s national development priorities.

The purpose of the PSIF is to strengthen cooperation and collaboration between the public service agencies (and between them, the private sector and civil society), in identifying and addressing critical constraints within the GoS public sector to effective service delivery through a range of institutional strengthening initiatives. 
2.4.2
Guiding Principles of the PSIF 

The four guiding principles of the PSIF are:

	Efficiency


	Productively engaged in maximising the allocated resources in the delivery of services and minimising duplication and waste in line with agreed performance indicators and/or targets

	Effectiveness


	Improving the planning, quality, needs and impact of services, minimising waste and increasing client satisfaction through improved design, delivery and targeting of services

	Responsiveness


	Reacting positively and constructively to the needs of clients, through sound processes and the provision of timely and appropriate reactions that lead to improvements in service delivery

	Accountability


	Being held responsible for all communications, services, decisions and outcomes


2.4.3

Administrative Structure of the PSIF

To deliver and account for the development results of the PSIF, the following administrative structures are in place. 
Facility Coordinating Committee (FCC) representing the Governments of Samoa, Australia and New Zealand and chaired by the GoS representative. The Committee has the responsibility to ensure that the Tripartite Agreement is working to support the attainment of the PSIF goal.  
Facility Steering Committee (FSC) comprising all CEOs and heads of Ministries/Agencies in the public service. The FSC is chaired by the Prime Minister thus raising the level of importance and visibility of the PSIF in the public sector, giving authority to the work of the FSC-SC. 
Facility Steering Committee – Sub-Committee (FSC-SC) is chaired by the CEO of MPMC. The FSC-SC meets between FSC meetings to discuss operational matters and make decisions, thus eliminating unnecessary delays on project decisions and approvals etc. Members are the CEOs of:

Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Labour

Ministry of Education, Sport and Culture

Ministry of Finance

Ministry of Health

Ministry of Women, Community and Social Development

Public Service Commission (Secretary).

Facility Management Unit (FMU) staffed through the public service and headed by the Facility Manager. The Facility Manager, Principal Program Officer and Finance and Administration Officer are permanent staff assigned to the FMU. The Facility Manager assigns an Activity Manager to each PSIF funded project. The Activity Manager is in regular contact with the Ministry/Agency Project Coordinator. 
2.5
Samoa PSIF Operations Handbook

The Samoa PSIF Operations Handbook was originally published in 2005 to support the operations of the FMU and provide information to other Ministries/Agencies about preparing proposals for consideration under the facility, managing activities, funding procedures and reporting on activities. 
In the spirit of continuous improvement, the Operations Handbook has been reworked by the FMU to up-date procedures and templates and to separate the operational aspects into two specific handbooks:

i. An Operational Handbook for FMU internal operational procedures; and 

ii. An Operational Handbook to guide Ministries/Agencies wishing to develop, have approved, implement, monitor and review projects funded through the PSIF fund. 
The Operational Handbook to guide Ministries/Agencies is an important document for Advisers to familiarise themselves with their immediate project working environment, understanding how it is embedded in the Public Finance Management Act 2001 and GoS Procurement Guidelines 2007 for Goods and Works and Consulting Services, and the reporting and other requirements for project monitoring and evaluation. 

Advisers should be aware that the Operational Handbook to guide Ministries/Agencies is available on the PSIF website: www.samoapsif.gov.ws
3.
WORKING WITH THE PUBLIC SERVICE IN SAMOA
3.1
Structure of Government of Samoa
Samoa has a parliamentary democracy whereby the Prime Minister is the head of government. The Prime Minister selects 12 members to form a cabinet. 
There is a unicameral Fono Aoao Faitulafono (national legislative assembly) of 49 members, 47 of whom are matai elected from Samoan territorial constituencies. Two members of the Fono
 represent Samoan citizens of non-Samoan origin. 
Members are directly elected by universal suffrage every five years but only people with a matai title (leader of an extended family) may stand for election to the Samoan seats. This reflects the emphasis Samoa puts on the matai system known as faa-matai. 

Villages are made up of extended family units called aiga, whose head is a matai. Traditional authority is vested in the village matai. According to the 2006 Census Statistics, the Samoan population is 180,741 and there are 15,783 matai titles (79.8 per cent held by males and 20.2 per cent by females). The matai title is strongly tied to the family lands and the place where it was originated. The central structures in each village are the church and the Fale Fono, the latter is where the chiefs meet to discuss village matters. 
The judicial system is based on English common law and local customs. The Supreme Court of Samoa is the court of highest jurisdiction. The Court of Appeal has a limited jurisdiction to hear only those cases referred to it by the Supreme Court. Below the Supreme Court are the District Courts. A very important court in Samoa is the Land and Titles Court that hears village land and title succession disputes. 

Head of State: Tui Atua Tupua Tamasese Efi was appointed Head of State for a five year term in 2007 on the death of Malietoa Tanumafili II, who had held that position since independence in 1962. 

Prime Minister: Tuila’epa Sailele Malielegaoi from the ruling Human Rights Protection Party (HRPP) gained a landslide victory in parliamentary polls in April 2006, heralding a third term for the Prime Minister. 

3.2
Fa’aSamoa
Fa’aSamoa is a system of social, economic and political action based upon the social structures of aiga (nuclear or extended family), matai (head of the family), nu’u (comprised of groups of aiga) and fono (council).  

Tautua (service) to the family is a key driving force in maintaining the family based systems. Service nurtures family ties and feelings of identity and is a major means for individuals to raise their status and be chosen as the representative of the family group (matai).  

Fa’aaloalo (respect) is another integral part of the fa’aSamoa system that aids in the promotion of order. Individuals are expected to give the utmost respect to their peers and most importantly their superiors. 

In Samoa’s 1962 Constitution there was a blending of Western liberal principles such as individual rights’, religious freedom, equality under the law, etc with the fa’aSamoa system.  The structure of government is coherent with a three layered system: (i) the tama’aiga (title holders from the four paramount families); (ii) matai and; (iii) untitled people. To explain: the position of Head of State should be filled only by those few who, by virtue of their title, are tama’aiga; MPs should always be matai; and all adults may vote. The fact that only matai can be elected to parliament is regarded as democratic as the matai is a freely chosen representative of the family group, not a hereditary title.

This blending of fa’aSamoa and western liberal democratic values has come under some pressure as social and economic conditions have changed since the 1962 when most people lived in villages in a semi-subsistence economy. During the 1970’s and 1980s, approximately one-third of Samoa’s population moved overseas forming large communities in NZ, Australia and the USA. Emigration to capitalist economies, increasing individualism and the influence of money is influencing the fa’aSamoa system. 

Nevertheless, the pressure to maintain traditional authority is greater than that coming from advocates of a non-matai based administration. This reflects the power of the matai in national decision making. 

For those interested in further reading on the subject:

Huffer, E. and So’o, A. (eds), 2000. Governance in Samoa. Institute of Pacific Studies, University of the South Pacific, Asia Pacific Press. 

3.3
Working in the Samoan Public Service
The Public Service Commission (see www.psc.gov.ws) requires public servants to uphold the following values (section 17), principles (section 18) and code of conduct (section 19)
.
3.3.1

Values 

a. Honesty – acting honestly, being truthful and abiding by the laws of Samoa
b. Impartiality – providing impartial advice, acting without fear or favour and making decisions based on merit
c. Service – serving the people well through faithful service to the Government
d. Respect – treating the people, the Government and colleagues with courtesy and respect
e. Transparency – taking actions and making decisions in an open way
f. Accountability – being able to explain the reasons for actions taken and taking responsibility for those actions

g. Efficiency and effectiveness – achieving good results for Samoa in an economical way. 
3.3.2

Principles of employment
As a good employer, the Commission and the CEO shall, subject to the Constitution and the rule of law, carry out employer functions according to the following principles:

a. Appointments and promotions must be made on the basis of merit;

b. Decisions on employment matters must be made fairly and properly;

c. Employees must have access to a simple and fair grievance procedure;

d. Employees must have reasonable access to training and development opportunities;

e. Employees must receive reasonable remuneration and reasonable terms and conditions of employment;

f. Eligible persons must have reasonable opportunity to apply for employment in the public service;

g. There must be equal employment opportunity in the public service;

h. Employees must be provided with a safe environment to work in; and

i. There must be only as many employees working in the public service as are necessary for the public service to function efficiently and effectively. 

3.3.3

Code of Conduct 

Every employee and every CEO shall:

a. Be honest and impartial;

b. Work carefully and diligently;

c. Treat everyone with respect and courtesy and without coercion or harassment;

d. Comply with all laws that apply to them;

e. Comply with all lawful and reasonable directions given to them by persons who have authority to give those directions;
f. Disclose, and take all reasonable steps to avoid, any real or apparent conflicts of interest in relation to their employment;

g. Use Government resources properly;

h. Use official information only for official purposes;

i. Act with integrity and not misuse their status or authority to seek or obtain a benefit for themselves or any other person or body;

j. Uphold the values of the public service set out in section 17;

k. Comply with any other conduct requirements set out in the regulations; and

l. Uphold the good reputation of the public service.
3.4
Guidelines for conduct by PSIF advisers 

Advisers funded under the PSIF work in a wide range of government Ministries/Agencies undertaking a wide range of tasks focussing on different aspects of management. All advisers must work in a manner that supports skill transfer and capacity building.

The specific requirements of the task, conditions related to it and outputs are matters determined by the relevant Ministry/Agency and contained in the adviser’s contract. The following guidelines for appropriate behaviour are provided and should be adhered to by all advisers.  

3.4.1

General Guidelines

When working in Samoa PSIF advisers should:
· Uphold the values set by the Public Service Commission for public servants;

· Comply with relevant laws and regulations in force in Samoa;

· Not behave in a manner likely to be perceived as improper political activity (for example to take part in protests, write letters to newspaper);

· Not disclose confidential information without authorization;

· Not discriminate on the basis of gender, race, religion, cultural or other irrelevant difference;

· Respect the professional opinions and practices of other PSIF advisers and avoid professional conflicts; and 
· Dress appropriately (some Ministries/Agencies may require men to wear the formal dress (i.e. faitaga) but in others, men should wear trousers and shirts and always women should wear below knee length skirts and modest tops). 

3.4.2

Ministry/Agency Guidelines 
Working within a Ministry/Agency PSIF Advisers’ should be cognisant of their capacity building role and the aim of long term sustainability, and:
· Confine themselves to advising and developing national counterparts and avoid taking direct responsibility for Samoan policy development or service delivery;

· Never talk to the media, always referring the media to their Ministry/Agency counterparts;
· Model appropriate professional behaviour, always being a positive role model for their colleagues and counterparts;

· Provide frank and professional advice in accordance with relevant professional standards, taking account of fa’aSamoa;

· Comply with relevant professional codes of practice, conduct and ethics;

· Perform with due diligence; and

· Emphasise principle over expediency.

3.5
List of government agencies

Government Ministries: 

Ministry of Agriculture & Fisheries - 

Ministry of Commerce Industry & Labour - www.mcil.gov.ws 

Ministry of Communications & Information Technology - www.mcit.gov.ws 

Ministry of Education Sports & Culture - 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs & Trade - www.mfat.gov.ws 
Ministry of Finance - www.mof.gov.ws 

Ministry for Revenue - www.revenue.gov.ws 

Ministry of Justice and Courts Administration -  

Ministry of Natural Resource & Environment - www.mnre.gov.ws 

Ministry of Health - www.health.gov.ws 

Ministry Prime Minister and Cabinet - www.govt.ws 

Ministry Women Community & Social Development -  

Ministry of Works, Transport & Infrastructure -  

Constitutional Authorities: 

Attorney General - 

Audit Office - 

The Department of The Legislative Assembly - www.parliament.gov.ws 

Ombudsman Office - 

Office of the Electoral Commissioner - 
Public Service Commission - www.psc.gov.ws
Public Trading Bodies:
Agriculture Store Corporation

Development Bank of Samoa

Electric Power Corporation - www.epc.ws 

Polynesian Airlines Limited

Public Trust Office

Samoa Airport Authority 

Samoa Broadcasting Corporation 

Samoa Housing Corporation 

Samoa Land Corporation
Samoa Ports Authority - www.spasamoa.ws 
Samoa Post

Samoa Shipping Corporation

Samoa Shipping Services

SamoaTel Limited - www.samoatel.ws 
Samoa Trust Estates Corporation
Samoa Water Authority - www.swa.gov.ws 

Mutual Bodies:

Accident Compensation Corporation

Samoa Life Assurance Corporation - www.samoalife.ws 

Samoa National Provident Fund - www.npf.ws 

Public Beneficial Bodies:

National Health Services of Samoa

National Kidney Foundation of Samoa - www.nkfsamoa.org.ws 

National University of Samoa - www.nus.edu.ws 
Research and Development Institute of Samoa

Samoa Emergencies and Fire Authority

Samoa Sports and Facilities Authority 

Samoa Tourism Authority - www.visitsamoa.ws 

Samoa Qualifications Authority www.sqa.gov.ws
4.
ADVISER INDUCTION  

4.1
Responsibility for adviser induction  

Advisers funded under the PSIF work in a wide range of government Ministries and Agencies and with a range of tasks at different levels of management. Given the variety of placements there is no single point of responsibility for all adviser induction.  

The Project Coordinator for each Ministry/Agency PSIF project is the person responsible for inducting local and international advisers into the Ministry/Agency, the project and the specific work place.

In addition, the Project Coordinator will be responsible for assisting the international adviser with their arrival in Samoa.
Where the Project Coordinator has provided an induction to the Managing Contractor (MC) or Team Leader (TL) then the MC or TL will be responsible for the induction of subsequent team members/advisers with assistance from the Project Coordinator.
4.2
Preparing for local adviser’s commencement 

The Project Coordinator must prepare for the arrival of the local adviser. The following actions will be undertaken and information prepared and collated before the adviser begins his/her contract:

4.2.1

Starting Arrangements

· Inform the adviser of the arrangements (location of meeting between Project Coordinator and adviser, time, schedule) that have been made for his/her first day on the project.  

4.2.2

Ministry/Agency 
· Structure or Organisation chart, including names of key personnel

· Corporate Plan

· Capability Plan

· Copies of other relevant plans and legislation/regulations

4.2.3

PSIF Project 

· Project Design Document 

· Project Agreement between the Ministry/Agency and the FMU 

· Any other GoS documents relevant to project 

· Information on other projects relevant to the PSIF project

· Name and contact details of person responsible for management of the adviser’s contract 

· Names and designations of key personnel and counterparts for the Project 

4.2.4

Schedule for Day One

· Introductions to key personnel and counterparts in the Ministry/Agency

· Overview of the Ministry/Division

· Overview of the PSIF funded Project 

· Meet with PSIF FMU Activity Manager for the Project 

· Clarification of the role and responsibilities of the adviser

· Clarification of the role and responsibilities of the Ministry/Agency

· Reporting requirements of adviser, including milestones
· Discussion of schedule of meetings already organised by the Project Coordinator (in particular for short term advisers)

4.2.5

Practical arrangements 

· Location of office facilities (bathroom, kitchen, water)

· Provision of a desk/working space/telephone

· Provision of internet access if available 

· Access to printer and photocopier

· Occupation Health and Safety measures

· Tsunami/disaster warning procedures

	Project Coordinator’s check list for arrival of local adviser
	Project Coordinator and Adviser to initial each box when completed 


	1. Preparing for adviser arrival


	PC
	Advisor

	Inform the adviser of the arrangements (location of meeting between Project Coordinator and adviser, time, schedule) made for his/her first day on the project.  


	
	

	2. Ministry/agency information

	
	

	Location of Ministry/Agency building 


	
	

	Structure or Organisation Chart


	
	

	Corporate Plan


	
	

	Capability Plan


	
	

	Copies of other relevant plans and legislation/regulations


	
	

	3. PSIF Project information
 
	
	

	Project Design Document 


	
	

	Project Agreement between the Ministry/Agency and the FMU 


	
	

	Any other government documents relevant to project 


	
	

	Information on other projects relevant to the PSIF project


	
	

	Names and designations of key personnel and counterparts for the Project (underlining that part of the name that should be used by the adviser when referring to this person)


	
	

	Name and contact details of person responsible for management of the adviser’s contract


	
	

	4. Schedule for day one 

	
	

	Introductions to the key personnel in the Ministry/Agency


	
	

	Overview of the Ministry/Division/key counterparts


	
	

	Overview of the PSIF funded Project 


	
	

	Meet with PSIF FMU Activity Manager for the Project 


	
	

	Clarification of the role and responsibilities of the adviser


	
	

	Clarification of the role and responsibilities of the Ministry/Agency


	
	

	Reporting requirements of adviser, including milestones

	
	

	Schedule of meetings already organised by the Project Coordinator (in particular for short term advisers)


	
	

	5. Practical Arrangements 

	
	

	Provision of a desk/working space/telephone 


	
	

	Location of office facilities (bathroom, kitchen, water)


	
	

	Provision of internet access if available 


	
	

	Access to printer and photocopier


	
	

	Occupation Health and Safety measures


	
	

	Tsunami/Disaster warning procedures


	
	

	Signed off by adviser and Project Coordinator and a copy provided to the PSIF Activity Manager

Adviser Signature:



	Project Coordinator Signature: 



	PSIF Activity Manager Signature:



4.3
Preparing for international adviser’s commencement 
4.3.1

Visa Arrangements for Short Term Advisers 

Arrangements will need to be made by the Project Coordinator prior to the arrival of the international adviser in Samoa. 
Contacts: email: immigration@samoa.ws 

or visit www.samoaimmigration.gov.ws
Advisers do not require an entry visa for Samoa if their stay is less than 60 days. However, they must possess an onward or return ticket and a passport with a minimum of six months validity. 

The Project Coordinator must:

· Provide information to the adviser on current hotel rates (based on information from their FMU contact)

· Provide the adviser’s passport and arrival details to Immigration in advance of the adviser’s arrival (see www.samoaimmigration.gov.ws )
· Inform the adviser that they do not require a visa for short term stays but they do need a return or onward ticket and a passport with a minimum of six months validity. 

· Inform the adviser that s/he will be required to provide the name and address of their accommodation in Samoa on their Immigration arrival form. 
· Provide the adviser with the contact details (work and after hours numbers) so that s/he has support in the event of any difficulties at Immigration.
· Inform the adviser about taxi arrangements, hotel transfers and costs from the Faleolo International Airport some 45 minutes from Apia. 

· Inform the adviser of the arrangements (location, time, meetings, people’s names and positions) that have been made for his/her initial days on the project.  

4.3.2

Visa Arrangements for Long Term Advisers 

Contacts: email: immigration@samoa.ws 

or visit www.samoaimmigration.gov.ws
An entry visa is required for visits to Samoa of longer than 60 days. However visa waivers will be provided to advisers working on the projects funded by the PSIF. 
The Project Coordinator must:

· Provide information to the international adviser on current hotel rates (based on information from their FMU contact) from where they can then seek long term accommodation options.

· Organise the visa waiver (see www.samoaimmigration.gov.ws )
· Inform the adviser that s/he will be required to provide the name and address of their accommodation in Samoa on their arrival form. 

· Provide the adviser with the contact details (work and after hours numbers) so that s/he has support in the event of any difficulties at when arriving in Samoa at Immigration.

· Inform the adviser about taxi arrangements and costs from the international airport to Apia. 

· Inform the adviser of the arrangements (location of meeting between Project Coordinator and adviser, time, schedule) that have been made for his/her first day on the project.  

4.4
Information to prepare for international advisers 
The Project Coordinator will prepare for the arrival of the adviser. The following information will be prepared and collated before the adviser arrives:

4.4.1

Ministry/Agency 
· Location of Ministry/Agency building including instructions to taxi driver
· Structure or Organisation chart, including names of key personnel
· Corporate Plan
· Capability Plan

· Copies of other relevant plans and legislation/regulations

4.4.2

PSIF Project 

· Project Design Document 
· Project Agreement between the Ministry/Agency and the FMU 
· Any other GoS documents relevant to project 

· Information on other projects relevant to the PSIF project

· Name and contact details of person responsible for management of the adviser’s contract 

· Names and designations of key personnel and counterparts for the Project (underlining that part of the name that should be used by the adviser when referring to this person)

4.4.3

Schedule for Day One
· Introductions to the key personnel and counterparts in the Ministry/Agency

· Overview of the Ministry/Division/key counterparts

· Overview of the PSIF funded Project 

· Meet with PSIF FMU Activity Manager for the Project 

· Clarification of the role and responsibilities of the adviser

· Clarification of the role and responsibilities of the Ministry/Agency

· Reporting requirements of adviser, including milestones 

· Discussion of schedule of meetings already organised by the Project Coordinator (in particular for short term advisers)

4.4.4

Practical arrangements 

· Provision of a desk/working space/telephone 

· Location of office facilities (bathroom, kitchen, water)

· Provision of internet access if available 

· Access to printer and photocopier
· Occupation Health and Safety measures
· Tsunami/disaster warning procedures
· Verification of Adviser’s health insurance and professional indemnity cover

	Project Coordinator’s check list for international advisers
	Project Coordinator and Adviser to initial each box when completed 


	1. Preparing for adviser arrival


	PC
	Advisor

	Provide information to the adviser on current hotel rates (based on information from relevant FMU contact) 


	
	

	Organise the visa waiver or adviser details to Immigration depending on whether adviser’s input is short or long term


	
	

	Inform the adviser that s/he will be required to provide the name and address of their accommodation in Samoa on their arrival form. 


	
	

	Provide the adviser with the contact details (work and after hours numbers) so that s/he has support in the event of any difficulties at immigration.


	
	

	Inform the adviser about taxi arrangements and costs from the international airport to Apia. 


	
	

	Inform the adviser of the arrangements (location of meeting between Project Coordinator and adviser, time, schedule) that have been made for his/her first day on the project.  


	
	

	2.Ministry/agency information

	
	

	Location of Ministry/Agency building 


	
	

	Structure or Organisation Chart


	
	

	Corporate Plan


	
	

	Capability Plan


	
	

	Copies of other relevant plans and legislation/regulations


	
	

	3. PSIF Project information
 
	
	

	Project Design Document 


	
	

	Project Agreement between the Ministry/Agency and the FMU 


	
	

	Any other government documents relevant to project 


	
	

	Information on other projects relevant to the PSIF project


	
	

	Names and designations of key personnel and counterparts for the Project (underlining that part of the name that should be used by the adviser when referring to this person)


	
	

	Name and contact details of person responsible for management of the adviser’s contract


	
	

	4. Schedule for day one 

	
	

	Introductions to the key personnel and counterparts in the Ministry/Agency


	
	

	Overview of the Ministry/Division

	
	

	Overview of the PSIF funded Project 


	
	

	Meet with PSIF FMU Activity Manager for the Project 


	
	

	Clarification of the role and responsibilities of the adviser


	
	

	Clarification of the role and responsibilities of the Ministry/Agency


	
	

	Reporting requirements of adviser, including milestones 


	
	

	Schedule of meetings already organised by the Project Coordinator (in particular for short term advisers)


	
	

	5. Practical Arrangements 

	
	

	Provision of a desk/working space/telephone

	
	

	Location of office facilities (bathroom, kitchen, water)


	
	

	Provision of internet access if available 


	
	

	Access to printer and photocopier

	
	

	Occupation Health and Safety measures


	
	

	Tsunami/Disaster warning procedures


	
	

	Verification of Adviser’s health insurance and professional indemnity cover


	
	

	Sign off by adviser and Project Coordinator and a copy provided to the PSIF Activity Manager

Adviser Signature:



	Project Coordinator Signature: 



	PSIF Activity Manager Signature:



5.
LIVING IN SAMOA
5.1
A brief overview

Samoa’s population is estimated at 180,000 and is concentrated on the two main islands of Upolu and Savai’i.  Approximately half the population live in small coastal villages. Around two-thirds (2/3) of all households depend on a mixture of subsistence and commercial agriculture and many wage-earning households engage in supplementary subsistence production. 
An estimated 40 per cent of the population live in and around Apia and generate 70 per cent of the GDP. An urban-rural disparity has been growing reflected in the significantly higher hardship and poorer education, health, electricity and water services experienced by rural areas. 
Samoa has a young demographic profile with 41 per cent of the population under the age of 15 years. Providing productive employment for an increasing number of school leavers is a growing challenge. 

Significant migration to New Zealand, Australia and the United States has resulted in many Samoans living overseas.
 The remittances generated by those living overseas have had a significant impact on the growth of commerce and in providing cash income for rural families with relatives abroad. However, Samoa remains heavily dependent on development assistance. 
Over 80 per cent of land is under customary ownership, 11 per cent under government control and 3 per cent freehold. Restricted title to customary land prevents land alienation and protects rights of access to means of subsistence but also constrains private investment. 
5.2
Samoa Tourism Authority

The Samoa Tourism Authority (STA) fale (house) is located in front of the large government building on Beach Road in Apia. The STA provides a Samoa Visitor Map and a Samoa Visitor Guide that is free of charge and updated each year.  The STA Fale is open Monday to Friday 9am—5pm and Saturday 8am—12pm. The STA information booth at the Faleolo International Airport is open for all international flight arrivals into Samoa. 
Samoa Tourism Authority - www.visitsamoa.ws 

The Samoa Visitor Guide is produced by Jasons (www.jasons.com) and provides extensive information and contacts for:

Accommodation

Airports 

ATM machines

Banks

Business hours

Climate 

Clubs and organisations – with phone and email contacts
Communications 

History
Events and festivals

Islands of Samoa

Public holidays

Village Protocols

It is recommended that advisers visit the STA Fale for the latest copy of the Visitor Map and Visitor Guide as a starting point for further enquiry into specific areas of information and interest. 

5.3
Some handy initial information 

Airport

Faleolo International Airport is located 35km west of Apia on Upolu. Taxis are available at the airport and will cost approximately SAT$50.  Foreign currency can be exchanged for local currency at the banks located in the airport and in a banks and money exchange agencies in and around Apia. 
ATM Machines

ATM machines are located in and around Apia and there is one in Savai’i. Credit cards can be used in the ATM machines, but only if you have a PIN to withdraw cash. 

Communications 

Samoa has introduced GSM cell phone services so you can use overseas mobile (cell) phones, buy a simcard, rent a phone or roam. 

There may not be internet access at the workplace but this is readily available at internet cafés and wi-fi connections can be organised if staying in some hotels or in some longer term residences.

Currency

The Samoa decimal currency is based on the Tala and Sene.

100 sene = SAT$1 (tala).  All major currencies are exchangeable in Samoa for tala.
Departure Tax

A departure tax of SAT$40 per person is charged. Children under 12 are exempt.

Driving

Driving is on the right hand side of the road, though the Government has announced that this will be changed soon. It is planned that the change will take place in September 2009.
Driving License 

A Samoan Drivers License is required for driving in Samoa. A Samoa Driving License will be required if you are seeking to hire a car.  A temporary license can be obtained at nominal cost from the Transport Control Board, Savalalo on presentation of your own valid driver’s license. 

Electricity

Power in Samoa is 240 volts and wall outlets and appliances use the NZ/Australia style three-pronged plugs. Power surges can occur and power surge protectors are recommended for valuable electrical items. 

Embassies

It is recommended that you register your presence in Samoa with your embassy. This can usually be done via the internet. 

Australian advisers can check for travel advice and register online at www.smartraveller.gov.au 

New Zealand advisers can check for travel advice and register online at www.safetravel.govt.nz
Emergency Numbers

Police

995 
Ambulance

999 
Fire


994 
National Hospital
996 
Police Station
22 222
Health

No vaccinations are specifically required for Samoa other than yellow fever if you are arriving within six days of leaving or transiting yellow fever infected areas. Malaria is not present but there are outbreaks of typhoid and dengue. 

Health cover, immunisations and health precautions are the responsibility of the adviser. For up to date information visit:

www.traveldoctor.com.au or www.traveldoctor.co.nz or www.cdc.gov
Hotel Accommodation

Project Coordinators should contact their FMU Activity Manager for advice on current hotel rates as the FMU has negotiated special rates at certain hotels. 

Language

Samoan is the national language. English is the language of business and is widely spoken. All Cabinet papers are prepared in Samoan.
Reading

English language bookshops are not readily available in Apia. There is a public library on Beach Rd that anyone can join for a small fee that is refunded when you cancel your membership. 

Religion 
The main religious denominations are Assembly of God, Congregational, Anglican, Baha’i, Catholic, Church of Jesus Christ of the Latter Day Saints Jehovah’s Witness, Methodist, Seventh Day Adventist.

Most villages have an evening prayer curfew for approximately 20 minutes at around six pm. 

Sundays are devoted to religious worship with families often attending both a morning and afternoon/evening service. A family lunch (to’onai) may be shared during the day. Sunday is considered a day of rest. 

Tax 

It is the responsibility of the adviser to seek tax advice from their accountant. Counterparts and colleagues are not responsible for providing advice.  The Tripartite Agreement Amendment does make reference to taxation.
Time Zone

Samoa is 12 hours behind Greenwich Mean Time.  This means that Samoa is one day behind Australia and New Zealand.
Village Protocol
Skimpy clothing and wearing trousers is not recommended for women. Nude or topless bathing is not permitted and swimming costumes should only be worn at the beach.  Even at the beach, most women would wear shorts over their bathers unless they are staying in a resort.
Useful Samoan Words
English

Samoan


Pronunciation

Hello

Talofa



Tah-loh-fah

Goodbye

Tofa



Toh-fah

Thank you

Fa’afetai


Hah-ah-fay-tie

Please

Fa’amolemole

Fah-ah-mor-le-mor-le

Yes


Ioe



Ee-oh-e

No


Leai



Le-ah

Maybe

Masalo


Mah-sah-loh

Tomorrow

Taeao



Tah-e-ao

Goodnight

Manuia le po


Mah-nooh-ya-leh-poh
Excuse me

Tulou



Too-low
Hospital

Falema’i

Police

Leoleo

Chemist

Fale talavai

Bank

Faletupe

Market

Maketi

Call a doctor/police

Vili se foma’i/leoleo 
SAMOA    PUBLIC    SECTOR    IMPROVEMENT    FACILITY











� Available at � HYPERLINK "http://www.psc.gov.ws/Publication/Manuals/final_sds_2008-2012.pdf" ��www.psc.gov.ws/Publication/Manuals/final_sds_2008-2012.pdf�


� Available at � HYPERLINK "http://www.psc.gov.ws/PASP-PUBLICATION.htm" ��http://www.psc.gov.ws/PASP-PUBLICATION.htm�





� Figure copied from the Strategy for the Development of Samoa 2008—2012: Ensuring Sustainable Economic and Social Progress, Pg 38. 


� Joint Samoa Program Strategy 2006—2010. Government of Samoa, Government of Australia and Government of New Zealand. Nov 2006. 


� Facility Design Document Samoa Public Sector Improvement Facility October 2004


� Tripartite Arrangement between the Government of Australia and the Government of New Zealand and the Government of Samoa. Samoa Public Sector Improvement Facility 2005—2009. 


� “Fono’ is the Samoan term for councils and applies to the both to the national legislative assembly and local village councils.


� Public Service Act 2004, No.14 available at � HYPERLINK "http://www.parliament.gov.ws/documents/acts" ��www.parliament.gov.ws/documents/acts�





� The information in this section comes from the Joint Samoa Program Strategy 2006—2010, Section 2: Samoa’s Development Challenges document. This document has more extensive information for those interested. 


� Figures range from more than 100,000 to more than 250,000. 
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Strategy for the Development of Samoa (SDS) 


Sector Plan for each of 15 sectors 
(each plan based on the SDS)


Corporate Plan for each Ministry 
(may have links to more than one sector plan)


Service Charters


Capability Plans


Ministry Annual Management Plan


Ministry Budget


National Budget



